
Rochester City Council 

 Community Development Committee 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

Elaine Lauterborn, Chair 
Donna Bogan, Vice Chair 

Tom Abbott 
Jeremy Hutchinson 

James Gray 
Meeting Date: Monday, September 9, 2019 

Members Present: Tom Abbott 
Donna Bogan 
James Gray 
Elaine Lauterborn 

Members Absent:  
Jeremy Hutchinson 

Guests/Staff: Julian Long, Community Development Coordinator 
Anthony Ejarque, Rochester Opera House 

Councilor Lauterborn called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Motion was made by 
Councilor Bogan and seconded by Councilor Abbott to approve the August 12, 2019 
Community Development Committee minutes. The minutes were approved unanimously. 

PUBLIC INPUT There was no public input. 

ROCHESTER OPERA 
HOUSE – Summer 
Music Series 

Councilor Lauterborn stated that there is general support on the City Council 
for a summer music series and that there are currently summer concerts held 
at the Rochester Commons. Mr. Ejarque presented a brief proposal on an 
indoor summer music and theater festival, to be held at the Rochester Opera 
House and hosted by the City of Rochester. Mr. Ejarque stated that an indoor 
festival would distinguish itself from neighboring communities’ summer events 
and also be less expensive than an outdoor series. 

Councilor Lauterborn asked about existing summer shows at the Rochester 
Opera House. Mr. Ejarque stated that these were produced by an outside 
producer and not the Opera House itself. Currently the Opera House is not 
interested in producing summer theater for charged admission. Mr. Ejarque 
added that he thinks a family-friendly musical theater show would be an 
especially good choice. 

Councilor Lauterborn suggested that the city could start with a single show and 
see how it performs. Mr. Ejarque agreed that starting with a single show and 
growing the program from there would be a good approach. Councilor 
Lauterborn asked if the City of Portsmouth’s summer series is run by the city 
or by an independent foundation. Mr. Ejarque stated that Portsmouth partners 
with an organization for its series and owns the land where the series is held. 



Councilor Bogan expressed support for the proposed summer series, as it will 
build on downtown renovation projects and the upcoming opening of new 
restaurants. Councilor Abbott asked whether there would be a way to tie 
together the existing or additional outdoor arts events with indoor events. Mr. 
Ejarque suggested that the City Hall Annex courtyard and John Shaw Park 
would be suitable locations for outdoor events. 

Councilor Gray asked whether the proposed summer series would be eligible 
for CDBG funding. Mr. Long replied that he did not think it would be eligible 
but could conduct further research to provide a more definitive answer. Mr. 
Long added that he would also be happy to look into other grant funding 
sources that might be a good match for the event. 

Councilor Lauterborn asked when the funding would have to be secured in 
order to produce the series for summer 2020. Mr. Ejarque replied that it would 
have to be January 2020 in order to secure royalties. Potential funding sources 
discussed included Rochester Rotary Club and Waste Management. 

FY 2019 
CONSOLIDATED 
ANNUAL 
PERFORMANCE AND 
EVALUATION REPORT 
– Review and 
Approval 

Mr. Long provided an overview of the draft Consolidated Annual Performance 
and Evaluation Report. All activities met or exceeded goals for FY 2019, with 
the exception of the Rochester Housing Authority’s Charles Street permanent 
supportive housing project. The RHA project was placed on indefinite hold due 
to lack of gap financing. 

Motion was made by Councilor Gray and seconded by Councilor Bogan to 
accept the draft FY 2019 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation 
Report. The motion passed unanimously. 

AUGUST 2019 HUD 
SITE MONITORING 

Mr. Long provided a brief overview of the HUD site visit from August. Overall 
HUD found that the City of Rochester was in compliance with HUD rules and 
regulations in most respects but that HUD had suggestions on improvements 
for the city’s grant applications, quarterly report forms, and other such 
documents. Two areas of greater concern identified were the eligibility 
determinations for the Rochester Community Center tennis court lights project 
and SOS Recovery Center. 

Mr. Long explained that he has provided to HUD a more detailed narrative 
justifying the eligibility analysis for the Community Center tennis court lights 
project. He added that he is still coordinating with SOS Recovery Center to 
obtain income documentation for HUD but that it might not be deemed 
acceptable by HUD. The FY 2019 SOS Recovery Center activity was classified as 
benefited “presumed low-moderate income clients” based on adults with 
disabilities, as all SOS Recovery Center clients are adults with substance use 
disorder. However, during the HUD site visit, HUD informed city staff that 
further substantiation of disability beyond substance use disorder diagnosis is 
required for this presumed client benefit classification. 

PROGRAMS REPORT – 
CDBG Projects, Other 
Grant Projects 

Councilor Lauterborn asked about the first round of public hearings for the FY 
2020-2025 Consolidated Plan and FY 2021 Annual Action Plan drafts. Mr. Long 
explained that as the first public hearings take place before the draft plans are 
posted for public review, there is no first reading before these public hearings. 



Mr. Long stated he would coordinate with the City Clerk’s office to schedule 
these hearings. 

Regarding the City of Rochester’s ongoing participation in the statewide 
Community of Action for Lead Safety program, Mr. Long stated that the city’s 
lead safety action team has considered partnering with New Hampshire 
Housing Finance Authority’s statewide lead abatement program. This 
partnership might involve providing CDBG funds as matching funds when a 
property owner cannot provide the necessary matching funds for an 
abatement project. 

Councilor Gray asked whether the Community Action Partnership of Strafford 
County (CAP) would be interested in running a lead abatement program, as it 
already conducts home weatherization work for lower-income residents. Mr. 
Long replied that he has approached the organization about the possibility but 
that CAP doesn’t seem to have the capacity to take on a lead program at this 
time. Councilor Abbott added that, with changing lead standards at the state 
and federal levels, the need for lead abatement is going to increase. 
Preference for revolving loan fund over grant. Councilor Abbott also expressed 
a preference for any lead abatement program or partnership to provide funds 
in the form of loans rather than grants. 

OTHER BUSINESS There was no other business. 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:59 p.m. 

 
Next Meeting – Monday, December 9, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in Isinglass Conference Room 
in City Hall Annex (33 Wakefield Street) 
Topics – FY 2021 Pre-Grant Presentations Discussion, Projects Program Report 

Minutes Attachment: City of Rochester 2020 Summer Arts Festival at Rochester Opera 
House Proposal 










	cccdc20190909minDRAFT
	Rochester Opera House Summer Arts Series Proposal

